
















WATER AUDIT CALIFORNIA
A PUBLIC BENEFIT CORPORATION

952 SCHOOL STREET #316 NAPA CA 94559
VOICE: (707)  681-5111

EMAIL: GENERAL@WATERAUDITCA.ORG

November 5, 2024

County of Napa
Airport Land Use Commission

Sent via email to meetingclerk@countyofnapa.org

RE:  AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION MEETING NOVEMBER 6, 2024 - 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN UPDATE AND NEGATIVE
DECLARATION ADOPTION HEARING.  

Water Audit California comments as follows: 

As a preliminary manner, we wish to deal with the timing of this comment. As always, it

has been driven by the actions or failure to act from Napa County (“County”). The public was

given notice of the intended action three business days ago. As another commenter has

protested, notice and time is inadequate for the purpose.

The Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC) considered updating the standing 1991

Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (revised in 1999) at its February 1, 2023 meeting:  

“CEQA Status: this is an initial introductory kickoff meeting for the ALUCP

update, an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact

Report will be prepared, at a later date, as part of the comprehensive update."

The matter returned to the ALUC at its July 17, 2024 meeting. However, the proposition

advanced is substantially different:  

“CEQA Status: Consideration and adoption of a Negative Declaration. According

to the proposed Negative Declaration, the proposed project would not have any

potentially significant environmental impacts."
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In short, the issues that give rise to public concern have changed, and therefore any 

earlier comment would be presently irrelevant and therefore a waste of effort. Respectfully, 

identifying a project for which an EIR is proposed is entirely different than a project on which

no mitigation whatsoever is anticipated. One cannot claim advantage of an earlier notice of 

intent when the County’s intentions and objectives dramatically change.

Further, two regulators have made comments and proposed mitigation which have been 

ignored by the County. Respectfully, the County is without jurisdiction to ignore California

Department of Fish and Wildlife (“CDFW”) proposed mitigations, or to unlawfully delegate its 

own authority to its Executive Officer. 

Again, the present record before the ALUC is materially incomplete. 

Water Audit California (“Water Audit”) sought by public records request, Mead & Hunt 

Consultant procurement documents. One of the documents received revealed a Board of 

Supervisors’ (“BOS”) December 13, 2022 meeting Staff Report entitled "Legislative Details 

(With text)." That document was created and printed on October 28, 2024, one week ago, and 

almost two years after the BOS consent item was heard. The record does not disclose a Staff 

Report at the time when the consent item was approved. It is reasonable to infer that it was 

written years post-facto to fill in a presently recognized omission. All documents of such nature 

are to be regarded with skepticism.  

The subject Staff Report explained that the 

"ALUCP Update is a project under CEQA process, current cost proposal includes 

preparation of an Environmental Impact Report, however, based on past history 

processing ALUCP updates, Mead & Hunt noted that likely a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration would be required. The extent of any identified concerns, and land 

use changes will drive the type of CEQA document required for the update."   

The Staff Report for the upcoming November 6, 2024 ALUC meeting recommends 

“Consider and adopt the updated Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

(ALUCP), including changes made in response to public comment, and certify a 

Negative Declaration finding that the proposed project would not have any 

potentially significant environmental impacts."  
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The record does not contain any recent event that caused the change in assessment. 

This “no impact” assertion is not supported by fact. CDFW recommendations to clarify,

evaluate, and mitigate were not included. It has been informally represented to Water Audit 

that CDFW concerns have been addressed in correspondence with the County, but there is no

indication of this in the record.  

CDFW’s position is unambiguous. 

"The Project, as proposed, would have an impact on fish and/or wildlife, and 

assessment of environmental document filing fee is necessary. Fees are payable

upon filing of the Notice of Determination by the Lead Agency and serve to help 

defray the cost of environmental review by CDFW. Payment of the environmental

document filing fee is required in order for the underlying project approval to be 

operative, vested, and final."  

Similarly, the County has addressed only two of nine Caltrans Aeronautics concerns. 

The remaining seven concerns are all regarding alleged "delegation of authority" from the 

ALUC to the ALUC Executive Officer.  

The assertions challenged are that an ALUC Executive Officer has delegated authority

from the ALUC to provide formal consistency determinations and comments for major land use 

actions referred to the ALUC. Respectfully, the Public Utilities Code (“PUC”) does not

authorize the delegation of the ALUC’s duty to anyone else, or specifically in this case, an 

ALUC Executive Officer. It is a legal requirement that the participation of the majority of the

commission members are to constitute a quorum to take any formal action, which includes 

consistency determinations. PUC, Section 21674, sets for the power and duties of the

“commission” only.  
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Caltrans Aeronautics wrote on July 16, 2024:

“The Division recognizes the intent of the ALUC Executive Officer to alleviate the

workload of the ALUC and to review voluntary referrals, amongst other

administrative matters for the ALUC. However, under no circumstances can the

ALUC Executive Officer have delegated authority for actions that are mandatory

by the ALUC. Please clarify the language in the relevant policies to provide

added clarity on this differentiation and to avoid misinterpretation of the policies

and subsequent actions, in addition to differentiate authority powers related to

Major Land Use Actions, Interim Mandatory Referral of Major Land Use Actions,

and Mandatory Land use Actions."

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully prayed that the instant matter be modified to

incorporate verbatim CDFW comments, and to strike the unlawful delegation of authority.

Respectfully,

William McKinnon
General Counsel
Water Audit California
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